HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 04, 2004
3:.03 P.M
TAPE HFC 04 — 19, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 3:03 P.M

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Eric Croft
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representative M ke Hawker
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Bill Stoltze

VEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve Mary Kaspner; Tim Benintendi, Staff,
Representative Carl Mses; Geg O ddaray, Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Labor; Quy Bell, Director, Dvision of

Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Janel l e Vanasse, Executive D rector, Yuut Elitnaurviat,
Inc., People’'s Learning Center, Bethel; Dr. Erie Johnson,
Executive Director, Southwest Al aska Vocational Education
Center, King Salnon; Bryce Edgnon, Chief of Operations,
Bristol Bay Econom c Devel opnent Corporation, Dillingham
Dave MCure, Executive Drector, Bristol Bay Housing
Aut hority, Dillingham Steven Angasan, President of Naknek
Board, Naknek

SUMVARY
HB 123 An Act relating to the allocation of noney

appropriated to the Alaska Hunman Resour ce

House Fi nance Committee 1 02/ 04/ 04 3: 03 PM



I nvest ment Council; and providing for an effective
dat e.

HB 123 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#HB123
HOUSE BI LL NO._ 123

An Act relating to the allocation of noney appropriated
to the Al aska Human Resource Investnent Council; and
providing for an effective date.

Co-Chair Harris MOED to ADOPT work draft #23-LS0620\H,
Kurtz, 2/3/04, as the version of the |egislation before the
Comm ttee.

Representative Joule OBJECTED for an expl anation regarding
the differences between the two pieces of |egislation.

Co-Chair WIllianms explained that Yuut Elitnaurviat, Inc.,
the People’s Learning Center, had been renoved from the
version being considered and that the percentages had been
changed.

Representative Joul e WTHDREW hi s OBJECTI ON

Co-Chair WIllians noted that it was not his intent to nove
the bill out of Conmmittee at this neeting.

TI'M BENI NTENDI , STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE CARL MOSES, expl ai ned
that commttee substitute would change the effective date on
Page 2, Section 2. The bill also reflects the nanme change
of the board fromthe Human Resources Investnment Council to
the Al aska Wrkforce I|Investnent Board. He added that the
version before the Conmttee would drop the Bethel Center.

M. Benintendi noted that the bill would add the Southwest
Al aska Vocational & Education Center in King Salnon to the
roster of entities that could gather federal funds. It

woul d change the University’s share from63%to 59%

The Sout hwest Al aska Vocational & Education Center has
officially been in existence since My 2002, serving over
900 students. The average active student count is about 45
i ndi vi dual s per nonth.

Funding for the program is through the Technical Vocation
Education Program (TVEP) and comes from 1/ 10" of 1% assessed
from each enpl oyee under the State’s Unenpl oynent | nsurance
Program This action does not create a new general fund
expenditure but wuld share in the pool of what is
appropriated fromthat program

House Fi nance Committee 2 02/ 04/ 04 3: 03 PM



The Center at King Salnon is a struggling regional training
center in the heart of the worst failed salnmon fishery in
Al aska. He enphasized that the bill would require the
expendi ture of no new noney.

M. Benintendi continued, the King Salnon Center provides

on-going skill developnent and retraining services in
sever al areas of potenti al re- enpl oynent for | ocal
residents, including skills in the construction trades,

energy devel opnent, heavy equipnent operation, conputer
har dwar e, comerci al operator licenses and the refrigeration
and wel ding trades. The center is positioned to train the
wor kforce likely needed to support oil and gas devel opnent
identified in that region.

GREG O CLARAY, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, offered to answer questions of the
Commi ttee.

Co-Chair Harris inquired if the prograns had been |isted

during the past six fiscal years. Comm ssioner O d aray
expl ained that the prograns were created and made effective
on July 1%, 2000. The facilities listed in the bill were

primarily vocational and technical training centers.

Co-Chair Harris asked if those nonies would be used for
retraining. Comm ssioner O Claray explained that the noney
could be used for retraining and first-tinme enploynent. The
Departnent also directs the Wrkforce Investnent Act
allocation for training individuals that are affected by the
downturn in the fishing industry. The noney coul d be used
for programs and/or capital inprovenents.

Co-Chair Harris asked the nunber of students that would be
affected in each of the areas. Comm ssioner O C aray noted
that the nunbers are available and would be provided to
Comm tt ee nenbers.

Co-Chair Harris questioned if the percentages were accurate
in conparison to the nunber of students invol ved.
Comm ssioner O Claray did not know.

Co-Chair Harris asked why Yuut Elitnaurviat, 1Inc., the
People’s Learning Center had been renoved from the 1list.
Co-Chair WIllians wunderstood that the State vocational
center was supported through the Governor’s O fice and noted
that it could be added back in.

Comm ssioner O Caray pointed out that the Adm nistration
supports the addition of the Sout hwest Al aska Vocational and
Educati on Center because of the approaching potential of oi
and gas devel opnent in that region.

House Fi nance Committee 3 02/ 04/ 04 3: 03 PM



Representative Joule countered that the Legislature is an
i ndependent body from the Governor. He enphasized that the
| ower Yukon- Kuskokwi m has hi gh unenpl oynent and requested
further hearings on the bill

Vice Chair Meyer understood that the University would be
receiving 8% | ess noney. He asked which projects would not
happen | oosing those funds. Comm ssioner O Claray did not
know how t hat would affect the University.

Representative Croft inquired how nuch funding was being
di scussed. Comm ssioner O Claray explained that this is a
portion of the Enpl oyee Contribution Insurance and the total
for FYO4 was $4.615 nmillion dollars.

In reference to a query by Co-Chair Harris, M. Benintend
advised that there have been approximately 900 people
passi ng through the programto date.

Co-Chair Harris inquired if the University of Alaska had a
branch in Bethel.

REPRESENTATI VE MARY KAPSNER replied that there is a
satellite branch of the University of Al aska-Fairbanks
| ocated in that area.

Co-Chair Harris inquired if they offer training simlar to

what the People’s Learning Center offers. Representati ve
Kapsner explained that it is “somewhat” simlar but not
exactly. She indicated the on-line testinony that would

further clarify these details.

Representative Fate asked how the allocations had been
divided. Comm ssioner O Claray stated that the Legislature
actually had established the allocations.

JANELLE VANASSE, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, YUUT ELITNAURVIAT, INC., THE PEOPLE S LEARN NG
CENTER, BETHEL, expressed concern over the om ssion of the
People’s Learning Center in the draft commttee substitute.
The Yukon- Kuskokwi m region is the poorest in Alaska wth
hi gh unenpl oynent . The gap between education and training
in the local workforce is |arge. She noted that what is
uni que about the Center is the nulti-organizational approach
to address education and wor kforce needs of the people. The
partnership does include the University and the | ocal

canpus. She continued di scussion of local skills training
and that bridging is essential if the people of that area
are to fill the jobs of that region and address current

inportation of workers. She stressed that it is an issue.

The partnershi p does address the inportance of the training.
The partnership includes the:

House Fi nance Committee 4 02/ 04/ 04 3: 03 PM



. Al aska National CGuard

. Associ ation of Village Council President
. AVCP- Regi onal Housing Authority

. City of Bethel

. Coastal Village Region Fund

. Calista Corporation

. Kuskokwi n Canpus - University of Al aska/Fairbanks
. Lower Kuskokw n School District

. Yukon Kuskokwi n Heal t h Corporation

Ms. Vanasse noted that Governor Mirkowski does support the
Yuut El i t naur vi at proj ect. Comm ssion  Sanpson and
Comm ssioner Blatchford have indicated that it could be a
nodel for the State.

Ms. Vanasse highlighted health career training. As services
are expanded in rural Al aska, it becones nore “tragic” that

there are nursing positions with no one to fill them She
mai ntai ned that they should be filled with |ocal persons
from those regions. She wurged reconsideration of the

Peopl e’ s Learning Center in the proposed | egislation.

Co-Chair WIllianms noted that amendnments would not be taken
at this neeting but that the bill would be held in Commttee
for further consideration and anendnents.

Co-Chair Harris asked how nuch involvenent does the
University of Alaska have with that canpus in retraining
pr ogr ans. Ms. Vanasse responded that there is significant

i nvol venent . The region is finding that retraining
successfully nmeans nore than just traditional education
courses. It nust also include transitional skills. In the

Yukon- Kuskokwi n region, it often neans |anguage devel opnent
for those wth English as a second |anguage, basic skills

devel opment and basic workplace training. Through a
partnership, the University does what they do best, bringing
in other partners to provide alternate skill training.

Co-Chair Harris asked if any of the noney that the
University currently receives from Unenpl oynent |nsurance
(U), was going into the Bethel Canpus at this tine. Ms.
Vanasse did not know.

Co-Chair Harris understood that the University does not have
a problem allocating 4% of their funds to the People’'s
Learning Center. M. Vanasse stated that the University has
indicated that they support inclusion of the People’s
Learning Center in the bill.

DR. ERI E JOHNSQON, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE

DI RECTOR, SOUTHWEST ALASKA VOCATI ONAL EDUCATI ON CENTER, KI NG
SALMON, reiterated comments nmade by Ms. Vanasse. He noted

House Fi nance Committee 5 02/ 04/ 04 3: 03 PM



that Sout hwest Al aska Vocational Education Center is in
partnership with the regional agencies. The Board is nade
up of seven regional agencies. He stressed that the econony
of that area has “gone through the floor” as it had been a
fishing econony. Many of the young working age people are

| eaving the areas, as there is |imted enploynent. There
has not been adequate skill training for them to assune
their role in the work place. HB 123 would provide a “basic
| evel” in operational use in order to maintain the regional

facility-training center.

Dr. Johnson stressed that the agency has addressed skill-
training needs in the area. During the first couple years
of operation, they have successfully created partnerships
and have been able to address the skill training needs of
nearly 900 people. A high percent are Al aska Natives who
are interested in | earning new professional skills that wll
enable themto take jobs that are available in that area in
order to decrease dependency on inported | abor. Equal |y
inportant are great opportunities for enploynent wth the
upcom ng oil and gas devel opnent in the region.

Dr. Johnson continued, the intent is to also nove toward
opening mnes in the area within the next few years, which
could provide nearly 1,000 jobs. He stressed the need for
the training of |ocal residents. The proposed funds w |
stabilize the Center and allow them to concentrate on
devel oping nore local partnerships in order to provide the
qual ity training. He offered to answer questions of the
Comm ttee.

BRYCE EDGMON, (TESTIFIED WVIA TELECONFERENCE), CH EF OF
OPERATI ONS, BRI STOL BAY ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT CORPCORATI ON,
DI LLI NGHAM testified in strong support of HB 123. He noted
that the fishing industry in that area “has seen its better
day”. In 1985, there were 39 conpanies in the area that
bought sal non, whereas, in 2004, that nunber has declined to
7. The current price is down to 27-cents per pound. The
mai nstay econony of the area has di m nished. He pointed
out the opportunities in the mning sector.

M. Edgnon enphasized that training regional residents to
take the upcomng jobs is inportant. He highlighted the
shallow gas drilling opportunities proposed for the area.
M. Edgnon urged support of HB 123 and that it nove quickly
fromCommittee.

DAVE MCCLURE, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, BRI STOL BAY HOUSI NG AUTHORI TY, DI LLI NGHAM voi ced
support for the proposed | egislation. He pointed out that
their building was constructed in 2000 in partnership with
the Bristol Bay Housing Authority (BBHA). He noted the
success of that construction project. M. MCure noted

House Fi nance Committee 6 02/ 04/ 04 3: 03 PM



that the area |ooks forward to developing local skills to
devel op the | ocal work capacity.

STEVEN ANGASAN, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), PRESI DENT OF
NAKNEK BOARD, NAKNEK, voiced support for the |egislation.
He stated that grants had been witten in 1997 with no
positive results and then in 1988, a $2 mllion dollar
Housi ng and Urban Devel opnent (HUD) grant provided noney to
renmodel and finish the building currently used. Fi nal
conpl etion of the building was in 2002.

M. Angasan echoed concerns with the decline of fishing

happeni ng over the past five years. He urged support and
adoption of HB 123, enphasizing that the bill would provide
for the survival of the Southwest Al aska region. M.

Angasan pointed out the Governor’s focus on oil and gas
devel opnent and that w thout the Center’s training program
those jobs will not be available to the people of that area.

Co-Chair Wllians stated that HB 123 would be HELD in
Commttee for further consideration.
#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:44 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 7 02/ 04/ 04 3: 03 PM



